
Scrutiny Standing  
Panel Agenda 

1 

 
 
 
 
Crime and Disorder Task and Finish Scrutiny Panel 
Thursday, 23rd November, 2006 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.00 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

A Hendry, Research and Democratic Services 
Email: ahendry@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564246 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors M Cohen (Chairman), M Woollard (Vice-Chairman), D Bateman, P Gode, 
Mrs A Grigg, Mrs A Haigh, D Jacobs, R Law, R Morgan, Mrs C Pond, P Spencer, D Stallan 
and J Wyatt 
 
 
 
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 2. SUBSITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services)  To report the appointment of any 
substitute members for the meeting. 
 

 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services). To declare interests in any items on the 
agenda. 
 
In considering whether to declare a personal or a prejudicial interest under the Code 
of Conduct, Overview & Scrutiny members are asked pay particular attention to 
paragraph 11 of the Code in addition to the more familiar requirements. 
 
This requires the declaration of a personal and prejudicial interest in any matter before 
an OS Committee which relates to a decision of or action by another Committee or 
Sub Committee of the Council, a Joint Committee or Joint Sub Committee in which the 
Council is involved and of which the Councillor is also a member. 
 
Paragraph 11 does not refer to Cabinet decisions or attendance at an OS meeting 
purely for the purpose of answering questions or providing information on such a 
matter. 
 

 



Crime and Disorder Task and Finish Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 23 November 2006 
 

2 

 4. MINUTES - 12 OCTOBER 2006  (Pages 5 - 28) 
 

  To note and agree the minutes from the last meeting held on 12 October 2006. 
 

 5. CRIMINAL JUSTICE SYSTEM AND OVERLAPS WITH MENTAL HEALTH   
 

  The Panel has agreed that it wishes to explore the overlaps between criminal activity 
and mental health.  In order to help the Panel, Alison Cowie, the Director of Public 
Health and Mike O’Keafe the Lead Commissioner for Mental Health from the West 
Essex Primary Care Trust and Steve Cook an Associate Director from the North Essex 
Mental Health Partnership Trust who specialises in the criminal aspects of mental 
health will be present at the meeting. 
 
The Panel’s concerns were first raised through your Chairman and centre around his 
experience that people with mental illness enter the Criminal Justice System and 
remain there until someone recognises their vulnerability and asks for “reports”. 
 
Often the nature of the offences centres around public order offences, disorderly 
behaviour, neighbour disputes, low level sexual misbehaviour (e.g. flashing), drugs 
and substance abuse etc. etc. 
 
What, if anything, is done to train Police Officers and Custody Sergeants in particular, 
to help them identify these mentally disordered offenders and of equal importance 
what provision is made or available for early intervention.  Is there any provision for a 
potential mentally disordered offender to discuss offending with a Mental Health 
Worker and does any protocol exist for those identified as potential mentally 
disordered offenders? 
 
What assistance, if any, can health providers give to local initiatives and community 
action teams in identifying potential mentally disordered offenders?  Is it possible to 
offer training to non-health professionals to help them spot such people and refer them 
on and is there somewhere or someone to refer them on to? 
 
 

 6. CONSULTATION WITH OTHER RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES WHO ARE 
REQUIRED TO PARTICIPATE IN THE CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION 
PARTNERSHIP UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THE CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 
1998.   

 
  The Panel has agreed to meet with representatives of the other designated 

responsible authorities who are required to participate in the Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnership under the terms of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.  This is to 
seek their views on what the Council could or should do to help it achieve its 
objectives and better understand the interaction between the partners now and what, if 
anything, we could do to make things better in the future. 
 
The responsible authorities are the District Council, the County Council, the Police, the 
Primary Care Trust and the Fire and Rescue Service.  The Panel heard from the 
Police at its last meeting and tonight will meet with the West Essex Primary Care Trust 
and the Essex Fire and Rescue Service. 
 
2A. West Essex Primary Care Trust 
 



Crime and Disorder Task and Finish Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 23 November 2006 
 

3 

Ms Alison Cowie, who is the Director of Public Health, will represent the West Essex 
Primary Care Trust. 
 
2b. Essex Fire and Rescue Service 
 
Assistant Divisional Officer Peter Ashby will represent the Essex Fire and Rescue 
Service.  Peter also chairs the Co-ordinating Group of the Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnership. 
 
Any papers produced by Alison or Peter will be made available to Members in the 
early part of the week of the meeting. 
 
 

 7. COMMUNITY SAFETY SECTION OF THE CURRENT GOVERNMENT WHITE 
PAPER  (Pages 29 - 36) 

 
  The Community Safety Section of the current Government White Paper is attached as 

background reading to aid the panel in their deliberations. 
 

 8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

 9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   
 

  For the Panel to decide on a date for their next meeting. 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTES OF A MEETING OF CRIME AND DISORDER TASK AND FINISH SCRUTINY 

PANEL
HELD ON THURSDAY, 12 OCTOBER 2006 

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, CIVIC OFFICES, HIGH STREET, EPPING 
AT 7.05  - 9.25 PM 

Members
Present:

M Cohen (Chairman), M Woollard (Vice-Chairman), P Gode, Mrs A Grigg 
(Planning and Economic Development Portfolio Holder), Mrs C Pond, 
P Spencer and D Stallan 

Other members 
present:

Mrs J H Whitehouse, Ms S Stavrou, Mrs P Smith and Mrs A Cooper 

Apologies for 
Absence:

D Bateman, Mrs A Haigh, D Jacobs, R Law and J Wyatt 

Officers Present J Scott (Joint Chief Executive) and A Hendry (Democratic Services 
Officer)

Also in 
attendance:

A Adams (Essex Police), Graham Carey (Essex Police) and Caroline 
Wiggins

7. SUBSITUTE MEMBERS (COUNCIL MINUTE 39 - 23.7.02)  

The Panel noted that Councillor Mrs Whitehouse would be substituting for Councillor 
Mrs Haigh. 

8. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor M Cohen declared a 
general personal interest by virtue of being a Criminal Defence Solicitor. He declared 
that his interest was not prejudicial and he would remain in the meeting. 

9. MINUTES  

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2006 was agreed as a correct record. 

10. TERMS OF REFERENCE/ WORK PROGRAMME  

The Terms of Reference and Work Programme were noted and agreed. 

11. CONSULTATION WITH THE POLICE ON THE CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998  

The meeting received a presentation (copy attached) from Chief Superintendent 
Andy Adams (who is the Divisional Commander for the Western Division and who 
also chairs the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP)) and 
Superintendent Graham Carey (the Neighbourhood and Partnership Superintendent). 
They were attending the meeting as representatives of the Police as a responsible 
authority.

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



Crime and Disorder Task and Finish Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 12 October 2006 

2

The Chief Superintendent showed the meeting a diagrammatic representation of the 
relationship between the various LSP panels and indicated that Epping Forest was in 
a good position to scrutinise the CDRP, with EFDC having representatives in many of 
the sub panels looking at various aspects of crime and community safety in this area. 
He also went through the performance figures of the police and compared them with 
the neighbouring police districts. At present Epping Forest is in the mid range of 
crimes per 1000 residents. The meeting noted that the CDRP group monitored these 
figures at each of their meetings; and that EFDC was in a difficult geographical 
position as it bordered 10 other CDRPs, 4 of which were Metropolitan Police areas; 
no other CDRP is in this predicament. There are also a lot of routes into EFDC, 
London Underground, mainline trains, M25 and M11 and A roads, if the Police could 
crack down on these routes in they could start to make a difference, i.e. with the use 
of CCTV and car number plate recognition systems.  The National Intelligence Model 
will be used for the delivery for the strategic assessment for the partnership, along 
with six-monthly strategic assessments and rolling three-year community safety 
plans. It was noted that detailed guidance was still awaited on the Police and Justice 
Bill from the government. The CDRPs were to report to their communities as there 
was no longer a requirement for an annual report to the Home Secretary.  

It was noted that the Overview and Scrutiny role is already quite well established in 
EFDC, the LSP board is already in existence and that the CDRP will weave into an 
already established local structure. The Chief Superintendent indicated that the 
challenge for the Panel was to work out details on how EFDC could influence the 
CDRP structure. Councillors will hold a key role under the new system, under the 
‘call for action’. Members of the public will be able to approach their ward members 
with specific complaints, the members will then have to say what they are going to do 
about it and who they would tell, e.g. the Police or the County or District Council etc. 
Problems reported into a CDRP can be reported to the most appropriate partner for a 
solution.

Asked how the Police monitors reported cases that need following up, the Chief 
Superintendent replied that requests and actions are minuted at meetings, are then 
followed through and any subsequent results are reported back to the next meeting.  

The Chairman noted that the 12-month comparator crime figures are moving parallel 
to, if not away from the target, why? The Chief Superintendent replied that the long-
term figures suffered in March, April and May of this year. Our near neighbours in 
London showed a spike followed by a drop and EFDC showed a drop followed by a 
spike. Police tend to flood an area and the criminals tend to move out to another area 
and as stated before, EFDC has a lot of borders. The Metropolitan Police tend not 
care about the areas where they move their criminals to. Since June, there has been 
a four-month reduction in crime. The targets were set by the government and are 
very demanding, but as a County we have seen an overall decrease in crime. 

Councillor Mrs Smith asked how the Police work with their partners under the CDRP 
banner. She was told that each partnership had its own action plan, the chairs for 
each group then met under the umbrella of a co-ordinating group, to help co-ordinate 
the CDRP as a whole. The Joint Chief Executive added that council officers did what 
they could to affect their own target areas in their unique way. 

Councillor Mrs Whitehouse clarified the route for problems, that scrutiny identifies a 
problem, gives it to the CDRP who provides a solution and then reports back to 
Overview and Scrutiny.  

Superintendent Carey indicated that:  

Page 6



Crime and Disorder Task and Finish Scrutiny Panel Thursday, 12 October 2006 

3

• The Police Reform Programme was working towards a different style of 
policing, more towards ward policing on the ground.  

• If a problem can’t be handled at a low level then the CDRP will push it up to a 
more senior level to see if they could deal more appropriately with it.

• Neighbourhood policing was introduced in April 2006, they are still rolling out 
and improving the scheme, although this did not have to be implemented until 
2007.

12. CONSULTATION WITH THE FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE ON THE CRIME AND 
DISORDER ACT  

The Fire and Rescue Services were not available to attend this meeting.  

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

None raised. 

14. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

Officers are to liaise with Chairman with a date for the next meeting. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



Minute Item 11

Page 5Page 9



Page 6Page 10



Page 7Page 11



Page 8Page 12



Page 9Page 13



Page 10Page 14



Page 11Page 15



Page 12Page 16



Page 13Page 17



Page 14Page 18



Page 15Page 19



Page 16Page 20



Page 17Page 21



Page 18Page 22



Page 19Page 23



Page 20Page 24



Page 21Page 25



Page 22Page 26



Page 23Page 27



Page 24Page 28



Agenda Item 7

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes - 12 October 2006
	7 Community Safety Section of the Current Government White Paper

